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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

For the entirety of the reporting period, the Trust's status was that of a single school multi academy trust
(MAT) comprising Anston Greenlands school only. Anston Greenlands is a Primary school for pupils aged 4
to 11 serving a catchment area in North Anston, in the Rotherham Local Authority. It has a pupil capacity of
212 (taken from Census information) and is over-subscribed.

During the reporting year, the Trust has continued its development work with two Rotherham Primary
schools, Redscope and Thorpe Hesley, to achieve conversions to academy status and to join them with
Anston Greenlands to form a three Primary school multi-academy trust (MAT). This work culminated with
the conversions being achieved and the schools becoming academies and joining the Trust on 1st
September 2020 The Trust's growth from one to three schools gives a combined pupil number of 1100 fte
(full time equivalent).

The Trust is aware of the Charities SORP Committee advice on the financial reporting implications that may
arise from the measures being put in place to contain the impact of the COVID-19 virus. The advice, which is
advisory in nature and does not amend the SORP, aims to assist the preparers, auditors and examiners of
accounts. It is relevant to academy trusts as charitable companies. In line with the advice, this report takes
into consideration the impact on the financial statements as a result of the changing actlvmes of the charity
itself. } .

The full financial impact of the Covid 19 virus on the Trust's single school has yet to be fully assessed by
tracking through the additional costs that have arisen. Some have been one-off costs, but many are
continuing beyond the period of this report and for an indefinite period into the future. As a three-school
MAT, the financial burden of our combined Covid efforts across three sites can only increase. The impact on
how the school has been organised and managed to continue to provide safe access to education in line
with emerging restrictions and de-restrictions has been significant. Throughout the report therefore,
Trustees comment on the school's response to the -pandemic, how it has continued to pursue its
development agenda for the two schools seeking academisation and how the three schools together have
played a positive and successful role in supporting the children of Rotherham, their families and community.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
trustees of the Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law. The charitable company operates as the Children's Academy Trust.

The growth of the Trust to a three-school MAT is a significant development. By the end of the reporting
period, the Secretary of State for Education had approved the conversions of Redscope and Thorpe Hesley
Primary schools to academy status with an effective date of 1st September 2020. As a reflection of this
strategic change and the Trust's work with the incoming schools to consolidate shared values and overall
mission, the name of the Trust going forward into the new reporting year 2020-21 will be "The Creative
Children's Academy Trust" ("CCAT"). The Company's registration details remain unchanged.

Details of the trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are included
in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. i

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they
ceased to be a member.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Trustees' indemnities

The Academy Trust has purchased Trustees'/Govemors' and Officers’ liability insurance which covers them
for any legal action brought against them. The current insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any
one claim. Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by s236 of the Companies Act 2006) were
in force during the period and remain in force in relation to certain losses and liabilities which the
Trustees/Governors.-or. other officers may .incur to third parties in the.course.of.acting.as Trustees/Govemors
or officers of the Academy Trust.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of new trustees

The Trust has actively and strategically reviewed its membership and the structure of its Board as part of its
expansion plans. This has been necessary to support the evolution of the Trust from single academy status
(ie a muilti academy trust (MAT) comprising a single school) into a three school MAT. The recruitment and
appointment of Trustees and Members has been in line with the Trust's Articles and reflective of the
governance guidance issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The driving factors have
been (a) to increase the independent nature of the Board; (b) to move towards five appointments at Member
level; (c) to ensure the required separation between the Trusf's governance layers; and (d) skills-specific
appointments at all levels. The changed governance structure and proposed appointments were approved
by the Regional Schools Commissioner (RSC) as part of the Trust's application to take on two additional
schools.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

All Member and Director appointments have been supported with briefing about the Trust, its strategic aims
and high level objectives. In particular, proposed new appointees were given the opportunity to attend the
Trust's Annual General Meeting to hear at first-hand about its work, finances, overall strategy and
development for growth.

Once appointments are approved by Members, individuals are given further verbal briefing tailored to suit the
circumstances of the appointment. They are also provided with details of the Trust's statutory Instrument of
government - the Articles of Association, plus the ESFA Academies Financial Handbook and Governance
Guide and other general information about being a Charity Trustee. Subject-specific training is made
available to Trustees through ‘a service- Ievel agreement for governance and school |mprovement services
with Rotherham Local Authority. L

Organisational structure

The Trust has a three-tier structure. During the reportmg year, it has operated for the management of its
single school, Anston Greenlands, the allocation of responsibilities across the three levels of governance is
articulated through the Articles of Association and terms of reference for the Trust and local govemmg
bodies. The levels are these:

- overall strategic management of the Trust - Board of Trustees (comprising Trustees, one of
whom also serves as a Member and provides the link between the levels, and the CEO-elect);

- arm's length overview - the Members, looking to the Trust's adherence to its aims and objects;

- local application of operational policy and management of Trust policy - a Local Governing
Body operating and reporting against Authorities delegated to it by the Trust.

This structure has remained the same on the Trust's development to a three school MAT. Both schools
joining the MAT have a governing body operating locally as described above. The Governing. Bodies of the
three schools have met for joint events during the development phase. .

During the reporting period, the Trust's Accounting Officer for the single school MAT has been the Head
Teacher of Anston Greenlands Primary school. He has also served.as a Trustee. With the expansion to
take on the additional schools, the Trust will formally appoint its first Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). The
CEO will take over as the Trust's Accounting Officer. The Head Teacher of one of the joining schools
(Thorpe Hesley) has worked closely with the Trust during the reporting period as CEO-elect in order to lead
the work on school conversions. The acting Head Teacher at Redscope school has also contributed during
the reporting period to this work, along with the local governing body at each school.
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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The -Trust would like to record its thanks to the governors of all three local governing bodies for their
contribution to the development of CCAT. During the reporting period, the Trust has completed its work with
all three schools to completely review its mission and values. This process has resulted in a new Mission
statement, spemﬁc to the new Creative Children's Academy Trust.

A full descnptlon and breakdown of the governance arfangements.is included in the Govemance Statement
section of the report.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration for key management personnel

The Children's Academy Trust has opted to continue to follow nationally agreed recommendations for pay
and remuneration for its single school, Anston Greenlands. -The pay and remuneration of the Trust's key
management personnel therefore reflect the benchmarks, parameters and. criteria set at a national level.
The adoption of the national agreements was a recommendation of the Local Authority with which the Trust
has a Service Level Agreement for Human Resources services, including pay and conditions and payroll. As
maintained schools, the two schools joining the Trust are covered by the same national policies.

Trade Union Facility Time -

The Trust has 21.46 full-time equivalent employees and therefore is not within scope of the reporting
requirements set under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements)
Regulations 2017.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
The Trust has no related party connections or connections with other charities or organisations.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES .

Objects and Aims
The Trust's objects are specified in its Articles of Association:

"To advance for the public benefit......ny establishing......and developing schools......to provide full or part
time education for children of compulsory school age” .

As part of its development work to grow the Trust into a three-school MAT, the Trust has worked with all
three schools to review its Aims in the context of its Objects. This has resuited in a new and jointly-agreed
Mission and Values statement for CCAT going forward:

“Creative children create better futures" is the concept which best describes our global aim.

The mission of the Creative Children's Academy Trust can be described in a simple statement, a sentiment
drawn from the mouths of our own children “to be the best schools in Rotherham, and indeed the
world".

We aim to achieve this by:

- Celebrating our uniqueness and differences;
- Putting our communities and families at the centre of what we do;
- Being uncompromising in our focus on school improvement and actively influencing and

supporting Rotherham's commitment to ensuring better life chances for all its young people,
- Adopting the mantra "We are all learners - always” )

Key Objectives in the reporting period

Reviewing the Aims and Mission of the Trust has been an integral part of our development work to expand
the Trust into a three-school MAT. The key business objectives in the year have focussed on work to
achieve the successful conversions of Redscope and Thorpe Hesley schools into academies and their
resulting inclusion into the CCAT family. The conversion process has been adversely and directly affected
by the Covid-19 pandemic and the associated impact on access to businesses services such as legal and
local authority legal/planning. The Trust is very proud of the fact that it achieved approval for the two school
conversions during these very difficult times so that we entered the new academic year (from 1st September
2020) as a MAT of 3 primary schools.
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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Public Benefit ' ) '

The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published
by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers. The principles of benefit to the public are enshrined in
the statements within the report. The Trust's recent fundamental review of its overall aims and objectives
has been an effective tool for ensuring that its activities and objectives going forward are targeted and firmly
-based-on-public benefit.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Key Performance Indicators

The Trust set four key strategic areas as a focus for its work during the previous reporting year to 31st
August 2019. The same areas have remained in the current reporting year given that they were the
fundamental building blocks of the move from single Academy MAT to a MAT of three schools. We report on
the progress in each area: .

- Solid Governance arrangements - the whole Board has been re-constituted with new Trustees
representing a range of professional skills and expertise against skills-driven recruitment. ' The interim Chair
was replaced by a new, permanent Chair during the previous reporting penod The Chair and the new Board
have overseen the development of the MAT.

- Development of the MAT - the conversion timetable for the acquisition of the two new schools has
been rescheduled a number of times. The lockdown response to Covid-19 presented particular difficulties
for school business operations as well as the Trust's ability to effectively pursue the necessary legal and
organisational agreements to achieve conversions. The Trust targeted additional resources over the
summer to overcome the barriers presented by Covid restrictions and secure Departmental agreement to
both schools converting to Academy status from the start of the new academic year - 1st September 2020.
This is a massive achievement for the Trust and has set the context for consolidation work as a MAT over
the coming reporting year to 31st August 2021.

- Partnership work between the three schools - the cross-curricular working groups established with
staff from all schools have been working extremely well against agreed Action Plans and outputs. Additional
subject-specific Groups have been added. All three schools continue to benefit from the outputs of these
specialist forums, both in terms of enhancements to curricula and in staff development. Initial feedback from
joint school improvement and planning meetings has been tremendous with staff commenting very positively
on their experiences of the joint working. The adherence to safe working practices during the Pandemic has
effectively ended face-to-face group work, but each forum is continuing to work remotely against their work
plans and objectives. When Lockdown restrictions end, the Trust expects this element of its work to
continue and expand.

- Academic Performance - nomally, the Trust would publish key SATs data sets relating to the
achievement of academic targets. The outbreak of Coronavirus has completely undermined the national
system for monitoring and testing academic achievement. At its February 2020 Board meeting, Trustees
considered a performance summary based on the latest available data, with its family of three schoois
benchmarked against National and Regional data. This was to establish an initial benchmark for the Trust
against which future performance of its schools can be measured The performance summary for the group
of three schools is as follows:

Key Stage 2

- Across all three schools there were 147 pupils in Y6, of these 145 pupils accessed the assessments in
Reading, Writing, GPS and Maths

- At expected standard in Reading, Writing and Maths. The three schools have historically been above
the National Average but there was a small dlp this year dip to just below. This was an expected
outcome and cohort specific.

- At Expected standard in individual subjects, the schools are above national expectations as a group of
schools apart from Reading which is 1% below - this difference is considered insignificant.

- At Greater Depth as a group of schools - above National Average in maths and equal to it in GPS.
Reading and Writing Greater Depth are just below National Average
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Early Years and Foundation Stage

- Above National and Local Authority outcomes for Foundation Stage 2 pupils at a Good Level of
Development.

- Above National and Local Authority outcomes for Year 1 pupil phonic screening.

The-Trust noted that Individual school-data-shows-a ‘slightly 'different picture-with-success occurring in some
schools in areas where others have had a dip this year. Generally, the Trust's baseline view of the joint and
individual data is good. One element of the Trust's School Improvement Strategy is the use of data to
determine cross-schoo! focus groups. These staff led Working Groups, for example "Greater Depth in
English®, work against agreed specific objectives towards the achievement of whole-Trust outcomes to
improve performance across all schools.

The work of the Groups is continuing by email or virtually in 2020/21, with goals and objectives revised to
suit working conditions and arrangements during the pandemic. Each of the three Head Teachers. will have
a common performance target this year linked to the success of the Groups.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectat:on that the academy
trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason,

it oontinues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Fmancual Review

The largest proportion of the Trust's income is obtained from the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from
the ESFA and associated expenditure for the year ended 31 August 2020 are shown in restricted funds in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also receives grants from ESFA and from other government bodies, including capital-grants. In
accordance with Statement of Recommended Practice 2015 ("SORP 2015") such grants are also shown in
the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income. During the year ended 31 August 2020, total
income was £1,015,914 (2019: £1,095,935) and total expenditure was £1,133,107 (2019: £1,471,219
including £323,853 in relation to premises maintenance).

At 31 August 2020, there is an excess of expenditure over income (before actuarial loss on defined benefit
pension schemes) of £117,193 (2019: £375,284) which is stated after charges for depreciation of £43,510
(2019: £46,343) and the LGPS pension adjustment of £56,000 (2019: £73,000) both of which are “non-cash
items”. The £258,091 reduction in the excess of expenditure over income.this year largely reflects one-off
items in 2019 that have not recurred in 2020, being £323,853 premises maintenance expenditure from a
Condition Improvement Fund grant received in 2018, less a £50k start up grant received in 2019. An
actuarial gain of £87,000 (2019: loss of £124,000) arose on the Trust's share of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit during the year. The Statement of Financial Activities therefore shows a total
net decrease in funds of £30,193 in the year (2019: £670,284 decrease).

The actuarial gain of £87,000 arising on the Academy Trust's share of the LGPS during the year, together
with other movements, has resulted in an LGPS deficit of £846,000 as at 31 August 2020 (2019: £877,000).
The size of the pension deficit is an issue for the whole academies sector and is being eliminated gradually
over 20 years by additional LGPS contributions. The need for further additional contributions will be kept
under review based on actuarial advice. .

At 31 August 2020, the Trust had net assets/total funds of £1,144,417 (2019: £1,174,610). This comprised
fixed assets with a net book value of £1,755,642 (2019: £1,791,411), other assets of £281,437 (2019:
£317,656) (including bank balances of £254,266 (2019: £255,534)), and liabilities (excluding the LGPS
pension deficit) of £46,662 (2019; £57,457). Net current assets were £242,479 as at 31 August 2020 (2019:
£260,199, and liabilities due in more than one year amounted to £7,704 (2019: £nil).
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Children's Academy.Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Reserves Policy

The building and maintenance of reserves is an issue which the Trust is currently addressing in line as part
of its work to consolidate as a multi academy trust of three schools. The Trust will not have access to the
final accounts positions of both incoming schools from the Local Authority until up to 16 weeks after
conversion. This information is key to completing work on the production of a consolidated Trust budget,
financial targets, top-slice funding formula for Trust central services and reserves- policy. The.policy,
including free reserves, will be set by Trustees as soon as the Local Authority is able to supply confirmation
of the outstanding financial information. : -

In agreeing 'the policy, the Trust will bear in mind both the experience of managing the Coronavirus
pandemic in school during the reporting year and additional associated costs and any extrapolation of costs
considered likely in the wake of extended or new virus management arrangements in future years.

The Trust's unrestricted reserves at 31 August 2020 are £176,822 (2019: £178,292).

Investment Policy

An Investment policy will be considered by Trustees as part of the consolidation work and in the context of
conf rmed budgets ' - '
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust entered the reporting year knowing its pnncupal risks and uncertainties rested on its efforts to
reconstitute itself as a three-school MAT through the conversions of Redscope and Thorpe Hesley primary
schools. .

The emergence of the Covid-19 Pandemic was an unexpected additional factor which had the capacity to
completely undermine the planned conversions of the schools and ultimately delay the Trust's development
plans for an unspecified and potentially lengthy period. There were implications too in relation to the
capacity and resourcefulness of schools individually to respond quickly and successfully to the wholescale
changes imposed by central Government to the management and operation of school during Cov:d
restrictions. .

\
L

- Maintaining the momentum on the Conversions '
Regardless of the difficulties in undertaking normal business transactlons because of Covid restrictions
imposed on almost all businesses, the Trust decided to continue with its pursuit and completion of the
financial, planning and legal processes necessary to achieve conversion’of the schools. This work continued
all through the annual schools summer closedown. The Trust is grateful to key partners in helping them to
achieve September 2020 conversions for the schools - the Head Teachers and Business Managers of
Anston Greenlands, Redscope and Thorpe Hesley schools; its-own Board of Trustees; Hamis & Co (Trust
Accountants); Taylor Bracewell (Trust Solicitors); colleagues at the Local Authority; our Department Partners
at DfE; and colleagues at ESFA. The Trust would like to place on record special thanks to the CEO-eIect
and the Executive Assistant to the CEO who led the conversion work on behalf of the Trust.

- The application of virus control methods in school
Although this report relates to the Trust's single school, Anston Greenlands Primary, Trustees feel that it is

appropnate to comment on all three schools since they were already working in an informal partnershlp

On an operational level, all"the schools were affected dramatically, with wholesale changes made to daily
practice. This will remain the case certainly for the immediate future across the three schools within this
MAT and perhaps a long time into the future. From March 2020, it was necessary for the Head Teachers
and their senior leadership teams to organise procedures and policies in response to the pandemic, both
immediate and long-term, including organising staffing timetables and providing care for key worker children
during lockdown. All three schools remained open during the Easter break in order to continue to provide for
the children of the key workers.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Muitiple risk assessments were needed to cover partial re-opening of school (initially FS2, Year1 and Year 6
children plus the children of key workers) and then later following full reopening. This was to ensure that the
arrangements were safe and fit for purpose and also to share with parents and families at a very unsettling
time. In preparation, and in their own time, staff physically rearranged classrooms so they could keep
children safe, operating "bubble" systems-to minimise the risk of cross-infection. New and additional
cleaning amrangements -were -introduced, along with- sanitiser points throughout the schools -and -within
classrooms. The new arrangements required revised timetabling to enable the staggered lunchtimes,
breaktimes and pick up times which were key to keeping individuals and bubbles apart and safe. Risk
assessments continue to be monitored.and adapted to thls end and uploaded to the schools' websites to
keep families lnformed c - .o .

It-has- also been necessary to work quickly to produce quality plans and matenals for. remote educatlon
support in the event of a local lockdown, or a bubble or individual having to self-isolate. This has resulted in
additional cost to the schools as well as impacting on staff time in an already pressured teaching
environment. Where staff have had to self-isolate, Teaching Assistants and support staff have been leading
classes on site, sometimes with the isolated teacher joining in remotely from home.

Additional work pressure on schools and staff P !
Safeguarding work has increased as the virus takes its toll on farmly lives. Staff in school have dea|t with
additional phone calls, administration and occasionally doorstep visits to homes where families are
particularly struggllng with issues such as wellbelng, mental health and domestic violence.

The wellbeing of staff is important to the Trust and it is aware of the gargantuan effort that staff have put into
keeping schools open and safe. They have done a superb job, but that has come at a cost for their own
mental health and well-being. The Head Teachers and thelr SLTs have worked extra hard to support staff
during these difficult tlmes ) , . ‘

The valuable,contnbutlon of school volunteers has been impeded during the pandemic Those who are
elderly or vulnerable have been unable to volunteer in school despite the precautions taken. This is
essential for their safety but has resuilted in additional work for staff.

Throughout the pandemic, site managers and: cleaning staff have worked tirelessly to ensure safe and
sanitary conditions in school. This has involved the deep-cleaning of classrooms and shared spaces, with
additional cleaning rounds each day. The cost of the extra cleaning and cleaning materials has only been
partly met by Government grants to the end of the summer term 2020. Since that time, schools are self-
funding the additional cleaning costs. The Trust will ask that the Department reviews its position on the
provision of additional funding for Covid-specific cleaning costs and classroom reorganisation in the light of
continuing lockdown and need to respond to new and emerging regulations.

The Trust's ability to continue to network with stakeholders is limited in part. Where virtual arrangements are
in place, the Trust is continuing to contribute.

Fundraising

The Trust did not undertake any fundraising activity in the reporting period. If in future it decides to develop
a fundraising strategy, it will comply with the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment)
Act 2016.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The Trust does not fall into the category of a large company, as determined by sections 465 and 466 of the
Companies Act 2006, and is therefore not within scope of the reporting requirements set under the
provisions of Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Plans for Future Periods

Following the successful completion of the conversions of Redscope and Thorpe Hesley Primary schools,

the Trust's key objectives for the 2020-21 academic year are to solidify the foundations of the Creative

Children's Academy Trust as a three-school MAT by: :

- Continuing our work to embed the new shared ethos and mission amongst our schools and throughout
the Trust governance structure;

- Working to consolidate processes and systems so that we can work efficiently as one organisation;

- Joint endeavours to continually push for creativity in the curriculum so that our model and approach is
something that other academy trusts respect and want to emulate; .

- Building on our experience and excellent response to the challenges posed by Covid 19 in order to
keep as many of our children as possible in a safe and welcoming learning environment;

- Taking action quickly and decisively in the face of individual break-outs of positive Covid tests and/or
regional surges in cases;

- Keeping our parents, carers and Ieamlng communlty informed of choices and decisions and maklng
Risk Assessments available online.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others
The Trust does not hold the assets of any other organisation or charity as a Custodian Trustee.
AUDITORS
Insofar as the trustees are aware:
- There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware
- The trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trust Board has considered the re-appointment of the auditor. It continues to hold the view that it is an
imperative to retain the services of the existing Auditor because of the value of their in-depth knowledge of
the Trust as a business, particularly in the context of the MAT's continuing development journey with a focus
on consolidation.

Report of the trustees, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on 8 December 2020 and signed on the board's behalf by: '

MrS Walker - Chair
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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Children's Academy Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. As trustees, we have
-reviewed-and taken -account-of the-guidance-in-DfE's-Governance Handbook and-competency.framework for
governance. Trustees are provided annually with a personal copy of the Academies Financial Handbook
("the Handbook") issued by ESFA.

During the period of this report, the board of trustees has delegated day-to-day responsibility to the Head
Teacher of Anston Greenlands school, as Accounting Officer (AO), for ensuring financial controls conform
with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between the Children's Academy
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The AO is also responsible for reporting to the board of
trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. ,

As a single school MAT, the local Governing Body has played the primary role in financial management and
governance, since the local body is best placed to apply the rigour and challenge expected of good
governance. The school's accounts are provided on a monthly basis to the Chair of the Trust and shared
with the Board as required by the Handbook. Key statutory financial returns are generated at school level for
consideration and approval by the Governing Body or its Resources committee and then submitted for final
approval and submission to the Chair of the Trust and its Finance Trustee (a qualified Accountant).

The Trust became a three-school MAT on 1st September 2020. The Accounting Officer has stood down and
the role has been taken over by the Trust's first Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The current. Accounting
Officer. (Head Teacher at Anston Greenlands school) has also completed his term as a Trustee of the
company. The CEO has been appointed to the Board of Trustees, without voting rights. .

Governance :

During the reporting period, the Trust dealt with all its business at the full Board including finance, audit, risk,
appointments, pay and remuneration. This has been deliberate as a newly-reconstituted Board so that all
Trustees would benefit from a period of induction to become familiar with the whole range of business for
Academy Trusts. This has worked well. Not only are Trustees fully briefed on all areas of activity, but the
Board has also used this time to ascertain how the individual skills and experience of Trustees might map
across to form the necessary scrutiny committees. ,

Outside the period of this report, the Trust has nominated individuals to form the following. committees:

- Audit and Risk: Chaired by the lead Finance Trustee (a qualified Accountant and UK Finance Director for
a multi-national company) with two members (our Legal Trustee (qualified Solicitor specialising in Public Law
and Administration) and the Trust Chair. The Trust's CEO/Accounting Officer takes part in the meetings for
the provision of advice, along with the Trust's Finance Officer. The first meeting of this committee was held
(remotely) on 5th November 2020. .

- Pay, Remuneration and Appointments: An appointment panel was convened for the filling of the vacant
Head Teacher post at Redscope school. The panel comprised the Trust's School Improvement specialist
Trustee, our Lifelong Learning Trustee (with a background in primary education) and the Trust CEO. The
Board ratified the appointment of the successful candidate at its meeting on 11th November 2020.

The information on governance included here supplements that already described in the Trustees' Report
and in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. During the reporting period to 31st August 2020, the
Board of Trustees met formally four times. It also held a separate AGM. As a single school MAT, the Trust
elected to keep all business, including Finance and Audit, within the brief of the main Board.

The dates of meetings held and Trustees attendance is shown below. Full mformatlon to include the
attendance of significant partners/stakeholderslservnce providers can be found on the Trust's website

(www.creativechildrensacademytrust.co.uk).
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Children's. Academy Trust Limited

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Full meetings of the Board were held on:
- 9th September 2019 '
- 4th December 2019
- 11th February 2020
- 14th July 2020. :
-- The Trust held a separate AGM on 4th December 2019. ’

Attendance dun'ng the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees - Meetings attended . Out of a possible
J Armstrong : T 3 : : 5 .
C Cannings : - I 5 5

W Ryan 3 5

A Sandhal . _ 3. * 5

S Walker (Chair) _ e 5 5

M Ward 3 5

A Wirth 3 5

T Toms (CEO-elect) 5 5

The Trust's schedule of meetings met the statutory requirement to meet at least three times. This was
considered proportionate for a single-academy Trust. For 2020-21, as a three-school MAT, the Trust will
adopt the Department's recommended guidance to meet at least six times per year, either as a whole Board
or in commlttee

As part of the development of the Creatlve Children's Academy Trust (CCAT) as a MAT of three. schools
Board meetings have been hosted at individual schools over the reporting period as well as at its Reglstered
office. . . .

Following the announcement of national lockdown as a response to the Coronavirus pandemic in March
2020, all Trust Board meetings ‘have been virtually-hosted. This arrangement will contlnue until further
guidance is glven by Government that it is once again safe to meet in person.

Governance reviews -
The Trust will review its govermance amrangements and performance in the Ilght of its experience of the first

twelve months as a three-school MAT.

Review of Value for Money : '

The Accounting Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accountlng officer for the academy trust has
delivered improved value for money dunng the year by :

- achieving savings on servuce-level contracts through the three schools working together to purchase
joint services such as training and development support rather than on an individual basis.

- benefitting from the outputs from the schools’ joint working groups which are providing valuable school
improvement resources which none of the schools individually would have been able to finance from
external sources. . .

Covid-1% Procurement - .

During the period there were many additional purchases of PPE and cleaning products The usual
procurement procedures were followed with finance officers continuing to source quotes and ensure best
value. Some of these expenses have been covered by additional government grants over the summer.
However, the Trust notes that such grants have not been available into the new reporting year (2020/21)
despite Covid restrictions continuing and there being no abatement to the increased levels of cleaning and
sanitation arrangements needed.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Covid-19 Procurement (Continued....)

There have also been other unbudgeted costs directly relating to Covid management which have had to be
absorbed, such as additional staffing to cover absences and/or management of bubble arrangements in
school, additional cleaning hours and more staff to cover staggered lunches. The school's efforts to ensure
its premises conformed to Covid regulations resulted in additional costs, for example the movement of
whiteboards- or the- purchase of additiona! .whiteboeards -in -order -to-adapt to -new ‘classroom  spacing- and.
layouts. These additional costs represent a significant strain on school budgets going forward.- Some, but
not all will be absorbed by making cuts where possible The net effect of rigorous Covid management in
schools will always result in increased spendlng which is difficult to profile and plan for under oontmuously
changing circumstances. . ‘

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control .

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness.- The system of intemal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The Trust considers its internal controls to be robust; these have been in place in the Children's Academy
Trust for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk :

The Board of Trustees continues to view risk management -as a live issue, not one which is reviewed from
time to time. The board of trustees is of the view that there is an on-going process for. identifying, evaluating
and managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2019 to
31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. The Trust will
be conducting a root and branch review of risk through its Audit and Risk Committee, the Chair of which is a
professionally-qualified accountant from the private sector. The review will include a complete re-evaluation
of risk and exposure to risk in the context of the Trust as a three-school MAT. It will also review risk in the
light of experience of the Trust's response to Covid management in its schools.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's existing system of internal fi nanmal control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. It applies to the functions of the single school in the Trust during the period of this report.
In particular, it includes: :

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget with monthly budget
and variance reports submitted to the Local Governing Body;

- monthly submission of accounts to the Chair of the Trust Board, with periodic financial reports to
the Board of Trustees;regular reviews of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

- delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

L. identification and management of risks.

The internal audit function at the school is cumently provided on contract by Rotherham Metropolitan
Borough Council (RMBC). Their role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of
checks on financial systems. Scheduled audits are carried out as part of the service level agreement and
any recommendations for change are considered and acted upon at the appropriate level (ie at the level of
the Trust or the individual school).

Going forward, the Trust has decided to purchase its internal audit provision from RMBC for all three schools
for the purposes of continuity. It has also bench-marked the proposed RMBC cost per audit with other
external providers and found it to be highly competitive.
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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
Review of Effectiveness oo
The Accounting Officer, Mr A Wirth has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system for
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the internal auditor,;

- -the-work-of the-external auditor;

- the work of executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the intemal control framework. '

Audits have been completed in the following areas during the reporting period at Anston Greenlands school:
- Financial control arrangements relating specifically to income collection
- Assessment of the adequacy of the internal control arrangements surrounding health & safety
functions .
- Examination of controls for staff sickness reporting and monitoring '

Assurance levels achieved:

- income collection reasonable
- - health and safety functions substantial
- staff sickness reporting and monitoring ° substantial

The Internal Auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned. The have provided an individual report
for each Audit undertaken which has been considered by the local governing body and a management
response to any recommendations provided. This has resulted in an agreed plan for remedial action where
necessary. The internal Auditor has provided an Internal Audit Scrutiny Summary Report covering all of its
audit work during the year and detailing its assurance opinion and details of any requested action. This
report has been considered by the Trust's new Audit and Risk Committee at its first meeting on 5th
November 2020 where it noted the assurance levels achieved as specified above: In line with the new
arrangements announced in the Academies Financial Handbook 2020, the Internal Audit Scrutiny Summary
Report will form part of the Annual Accounts documentation submitted to the Education and Skills Funding
Agency. :

All mandatory Departmental Retumns have been completed and submitted within the specified timescale, or
within a revised timescale set by the Department because of the implications of Coronavirus.

Approved by order éf the members of the board of trustees on 8 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr S Walker - Chair Mr A Wirth - Accounting Officer
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

As accounting officer of Children's Academy Trust Limited | have considered my responsibility to notify the
charitable company board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the
charitable company, under the funding agreement in place between the charitable company and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of
the Academies-Financial-Handbook 2019.

| confirm that | and the charitable company board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the charitable company, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the charitable company's funding. agreement and the Academies Financial
Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances-are identified after the date of thls statement, these will be notified to the
board of tfustees and ESFA. ' .

“rA Wirth - Accounting Officer . - : . ‘. .

8 December 2020
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Statement of Trustees Responsibilities *
for the Year Ended 31 August 2620

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practloe) and applicable
law and regulations. = « -

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law, the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its mcomlng resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. .

In preparing these fi nancial statements the trustees are required to:

- select suitable aocountlng pollmes and then apply them consistently; .-

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020 and its Supplementary Bulletin;

- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements; -

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to .
presume that the charitable company will continue in business. -

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the' financial
position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/Department for Education
(DfE) have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved e members of the board of trustees on 8 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr S Walker —‘Chalr o Trustees
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Children's Academy Trust Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Children's Academy Trust Limited (the ‘charitable company') for
the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the
Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law,
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) N

In our oplmon the financial statements: .

- give a true and fair view of the state.of the charitable company's affalrs as at 31 August 2020 and of
its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year
then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- - have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and Academies Accounts Dlrectlon
2019 to 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the . Auditors
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. -

Conclusions relating to going concern .

We have nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters in relatuon to which the ISAs {UK) require us to

report to you where:

- the trustees' use of the going concern bas1s of accounting in the preparation of the ﬂnancnal
statements is not appropriate; or

- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concemn basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the mformahon
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors
thereon. )

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,- except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the fi nancual
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and .

- the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches.not.visited-by-us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent
Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org. uklaudntorsresponsubllltles This description forms part of our
Report of the independent Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as ‘a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

e ( H‘,AL(‘G\(

Paul Hinchliffe BA FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Harris & Co Limited
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
Marland House

13 Huddersfield Road

Barnsley

South Yorkshire -

S70 2LW . ’
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Independent:Reporting‘Accountant’s Assurance.Report on:Regularity to
Children's Academy.Trust Limited and the:Education and' Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried
out ansengagement: to. obtain limited ;assurance:about whether the: expenditure:disbursed :and.income
received by, Children's Academy Trust:Limited during the period i1:September,2019 toi31:August-2020 have
been):applied:.to:the purposes :identifiedrby Parliament:and;-the \financial ‘.transacﬂons oonform -torthe
authorities which govern them. ST L e R

This report.is.made-solely-to-Children's -Academy Trust-Limited and the ESFA in- accordance. with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Children's Academy
Trust Limited and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Children's
Academy Trust Limited and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

i D 21t
Respective responsibilities of Children's Academy Trust Limited's accounting;-officer tandvthe
reporting accountant Jeunt begheM

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Children's Academy TrustuL|m|ted's~fund|ng
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 30 October 2014 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income: recelved is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govem them.
2 N R

Our responsnbllltles for this engagement are established in the Umted Kingdom by our professuons ethlcal
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September.2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Approach '
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2019 to 2020 issued
by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform ‘such procedures as to obtain information and
explanatlons in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusmn on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and pnopnety of
the charitable company's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

- consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statement on regularity,
propriety and compluance

- ~ evaluation of the general control environment of the Academy Trust;

- assessment and testing of a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a
particular activity;

- consideration of whether the activity is permissible within the Academy Trust's framework
of authorities.

- consideration of matters raised by the academy trust's internal auditors.
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independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to
Children's Academy Trust Limited and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

Conclusion * ' : :
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

W o

Harris & Co Limited

Chartered Accountants : .
Marland House

13 Huddersfield Road

Barnsley

South Yorkshire

S70 2LW
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Children's Academy Trust Limited (Registered number: 09061804)

Balance Sheet
At 31 August 2020

2020 2019
Note : £ £
FIXED ASSETS ' '
Tangible assets 13 1,755,642 _ 1,791,411
CURRENT ASSETS |
Stocks 14 2,103 1,637
Debtors 15 25,068 60,485 -
Cash at bank 254,266 255,534
281,437 317,656
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within
one year 16 (38,958) (67,457)
NET CURRENT ASSETS ol 242,479 260,199
TOTAL ASSETS LESS . .
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,998,121 2,051,610
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after
more than one year 17 _ . (7,704) -
PENSION LIABILITY 22 | (846,000) (877,000)
NET ASSETS ) 1,144,417 1,174,610
FUNDS 21
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 176,822 178,292
Restricted funds:
Restricted General 49,297 50,600
Restricted Fixed Asset 1,764,298 1,822,718
Restricted - Pension ‘ ) (846,000) (877,000)
' 967,595 996,318
TOTAL FUNDS " ' ’ 1,144,417 1,174,610

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 8 December 2020 and were signed on
its behaif by:

Mr S Walker - z Chalr of Trustees

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

.Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

S - et e e L. 2020
Notes £

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash generated from operations 1 10,249
-Net-cash-provided by (used in) cperatifig e .
activities 10,249
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of tangible fixed assets O (7,741)
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA (3.911)
Interest received 135
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities . S o (11,517)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period - (1,268)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the reporting period . 255,634
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period - 254,266

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31. August 2020

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the
-statement-of financial activities) 4 :
Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

Interest received

(Increase)/decrease’in stocks

Decrease in debtors

- Decrease in creditors

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

. 202 . 2019
£ £ -

(117,193)- (375,284).

43,510 46,343
3,911 (16,190)
- (135) (192)
(466) - 1,134
. 35417 . 152,635,
(10,795) . (29,126)
56,000 73,000

Y

10,249 (147,680)

Cash flow At 31/8/20
£ g

.

(1,268) . . 254,266

At 1/9/19

- £
Net cash L )
, Cash at bank . 255,534
Total o 255,534

roE

(1,268) 254,266
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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - )

Basis of preparing the financial statements
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a publlc benefit entity under FRS 102 have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: - Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2020 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. .

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concemn is appropriate, i.e. ‘whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy to continue as a going concen. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. .

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accountlng
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in the notes to the accounts, will impact the
carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results
from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in
valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the
roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the camrying amount of the
pension liability.

Capital grants, including those from the Condition Improvement Fund, are recognised in full when
there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in
the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised on a receivable
basis and upon entittlement, and not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.
Where entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

Expenditure incurred from capital grant income is recognised either through the Statement of
Financial Activities or capitalised on the Balance Sheet, depending on its nature. Expenditure is
capitalised where the expenditure provides incremental economic benefits to the entity. Where the
expenditure is in respect of repairs and maintenance, or an asset which may have to be replaced at
regular intervals, expenditure is written off through the Statement of Financial Activities.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Income
All income is recognised once the academy has entittement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received, and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not
expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is
received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income
and expenditure account in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the
period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset
on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the
restricted fixed asset fund.

Sponsorship income provided to the academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account in the period in which it
is receivable, where receipt is probable and it is measurable. ’

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where receipt is probable, and the amount can be
reliably measured. '

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and to
the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normally upon natification of the interest paid or payable by the
bank. . . N
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Children’s Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or.constructive obligation to transfer economic benef t
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount: of the-obligation. can be measured-reliably. -Expenditure -is ‘classified by activity: The-.costs. of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs-which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
.the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreclatuon
. charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use. . . J

~ Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for
its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable
trading. ’

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations,
- including support costs and those costs relating to the govemance of the Academy Trust appointed to
' charitable activities.

All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Where assets and liabilities in respect of an existing academy are transferred out of the trust, the
transferred assets and liabilities are derecognised from the balance sheet at the point when the risks
. and rewards of ownership pass from the trust, which is on signing of the transfer agreement with the
. trust to which the academy is transferring. An equal amount of expenditure is recognised for the
transfer of an existing academy out of the trust.

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its
estimated useful life.

Leasehold land and buildings - Straight line over 50 years  ~ EET N

Furniture and equipment - Straight line over 10 years
Computer equipment ’ - Straight line over 5 years

Depreciation is not charged on freehold land. Assets inherited on conversion {other than land and
buildings) are depreciated over their estimated remaining useful life, as at the date of conversion

* All assets costing more than £1,000 are capitalised and are carried at cost net of deprecnatron and
any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account and carried
forward in the Balance sheet.

Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account. Where tangible fixed
assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments
.~ The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The ﬁnanmal assets and
- financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in the notes to the accounts. Prepayments are not financial
instruments. : N
: . ) . L e
Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised costs as detailed in the notes to the accounts. Taxation and social security are
not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stocks

Stocks are: valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specif c capital purposes
imposed by the Department for Education where the asset acquired or created ls held for a specific
purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder and include grants from the Department for Education.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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Children's'Academy.Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for.the.Year.Ended 31:August 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 21 3D INTHADZ CUA ZVOITAYOG £
gree Qg0
IsicTPension costs and other.post-retirement benefits
~briiRetirementbenefits to employees of the:academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
2Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Governments Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit

2¢¢ ‘schemes-and;the assets are- held-separately from those.of the.Academy Trust. “nognnol
_o_gt 81‘ (Np.u, (lf’,c.} 318)

The TPS’is an unfunded scheme and “contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
& ipensions over employees' lworklng llves\wnh the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
"“"substantially” level percéntage”of current”and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on,the, basis of.quadrennial;valuations using,a prospective
arocunit credit; method. TPS is a multi employer scheme with no underlylng ‘assets to assign between
«employers Consequently, the TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for
Ca.: accountlng purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate trh 350
Oy Lodhseaiao |'snlx¢,e
~ The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in
2r  Separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
! ’are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
prrac | equivalent, to, the current rate of.retum on.a high quality. corporate bond of, equnvalent term and
B mﬂ}(cuhrrency to the Ilabllltles The actuanal valuatlons are obtalned at least trlennlally and are updated at
each 'Balance shieet date™ The ‘amouints charged to operatung surplus are the current serwce costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes settiements ‘and curtailments’ Théy'areincluded
as part of staff costs as incurred. Net. mterest on,the.net defined, benefit. llablllty/asset is also
recognlsed in the Statement of fi nanclal activities' mcorporatlng income’ and expendlture "account and
-comprises the interest cost on the def ned beneft obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets calculated by mult:plylng the fair value ‘of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by

gtos
HSWP

ebr the rate used: to discount the'benefit obllgatlons The difference between the interest income on the
“scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recogn:seg in o_ther r’ecggmsed gains
grgndlosses e v neB.vus (OR8] e I g7 90

i nte
8:\‘ 8Actuanal ga‘lfts and Iosseqsaare recogmsed immediately in other recognised gains a’nd losses4 2
£50. !Debtors »an Acn
Trade and other debtors are recogmsed at the settlement amount after any frade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. .
PES 3 T IV 984 uﬂﬂ’»"\v’ﬂa et 8
2% (Bash at bank and in hand= > | e nnik st Ad e O
,Cash at bank and in hand mcludes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
284 Yof three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

o¥CL” Liabilities ‘and prov|s|ons ) ol gbiag oy Mg by "9y e s annibniso heltiiuinu on evs enend
‘&M Ljabilitiesand provisions‘are” recognlsed 'when there'is an obllgatlon at'theiBalance sheet 'date as a
result of a past event, it is probable that ‘a:transfer-of economic benefit will 'be required in‘settlement,
and the amount of the settiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it'has received as‘advanced
235 paymentsifor the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
%13 the amounts required to séttle’ ‘the’ obhgatlon ‘Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
2an 'the provision'is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate
—'that reflects the risks specific to the Ilablllty The unwinding of the discount is recognised within

3»’ interest payable and S|m||ar charges. <%7.3¢ prased
T, 014 Mt ML E e Has TV {0
¢ l“S. AN gEZ dt - gLeor ewoun chT
el ent - gnee meind
£eC.t €aJ.8 - Cad.c ecuiiosi 1o o1iH
Jev 88 n3g st - 8y, . ayls fa2siiacnd
OYA 85 £40.83 ; 340,09
P LRS- £ A XTI b ]



Children's Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2, DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS '

2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
. £ £ U £
Donations : ' 3,952 - 3,952 -8;224
Grants - (3,911) (3,911) 16,190
3,952 - (3,911) 41 24,414
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:
: ' 2020 2019
- £ £
Capital grants received 6,361 - 16,190
Salix loan reclassified _ (10,272)
(3,911) 16,190

Capital grant income is showing as negative due to a £10,272 Salix loan advance from ESFA being
included in a previous year's Conditional Improvement Fund grant i income which has been transferred
to other credltors (see note 16 and 17) this year

3. FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

, 2020 . 2019

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds © funds

‘ £ R £ £

DfE/ESFA revenue grant

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 807,824 807,824 804,212

Other ESFA grants - 90,762 90,762 108,763

Pupil Premium - 29,779 29,779 31,448

- . 928,365 928,365 . 944,423

Other government grant
Other LA funding

21,327 21,327 40,436

949,692 949,692 984,859

There are no unfulfilled conditions at the year end with regards to the amounts included in the above
government grants. The other ESFA grant income mainly relates to Teachers' Pay and Teachers’
Pension grant income and Universal Free School Meals.

4. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds

: £ £ £ £
Catering 16,845 - 16,845 24,106
Other income 8,174 - 8,174 10,063
Trip income 19,335 - 19,335 22,213
Uniform 3,143 - 3,143 3,985
Hire of facilities 3,569 - 3,569 3,353
Breakfast club 14,980 - 14,980 22,750
66,046 - 66,046 86,470
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Children's Academy,Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
- for.the,Year.Ended 31'August 2020

4 OF‘AﬁB"G 80 O!TﬁJUQ:i ‘8"(?&::01&’)@ BElTWY"OA SJEA"MP HD . 8
5. INVESTMENT INCOME

eres 0cos ' . 2020 2019
IeloT istoT bokories s bat:Unrestricted Restricted - Total Total
sbrivt 2bnud abrug - 2baut funds funds . funds funds*

S | 3 .3 2 £ £ . .£ £
220,eDeposit account interest £0¢,SeV 0SS IS 135 - 13540 fonr'@ 192
YEY,RE0 rSO81E 829,238 £8€.08 - alzan noqoue -

ST3SBAT C GRSESN  IMOEOL E03MY
6. EXPENDITURE ~ T i '

Non-pay expenditure

eros 0808 Staff costs Premises Othercosts 2020 Total 2019 Total
isloT laioT £ £ £ £ £
s Raising funds . '

Costs of fundraising ‘ ’ 23200 jiogque Yo clovisni
»o3 tDirect costs ¢ a&,; 3,857 - .- 2in.3,8572 hoqque 2,547
Q0z 8 gar nodeioatqzQ
#¢h 2Charitable actlvitles : erzeo palondpeT
pSy fAcademies educatlonal . plaod pozimey®
ahg roperations ¢ €8 : ' gy hogaue wdl0
025, xDlrect costsy ¥ _ 710,941 - 102,288 813,229 |59y 828,935

‘Allocated support costs 136,340 65,930 113,761 316,021 639,737
TEY P8 CLITE . : 13¢09 hrogous inleT

’ 851,138 65,930 216,039 1,133,107 1,471,219

Net income/(expenditure) is stated after charging/(crediting): 1A WOITARIUUNEA 833TaLST, €

As meed siiigned 1edio bsvigost zsfl W noiisienumsy bisg nasd cerl zestant’ 2020 w an02019
noifsnonumset evicoan yino 2zalann’ ale 150z bns issionhT 6T Jeusd yraokeos odl Arg. Inonskymag
wbny Auditors'. remuneration® 180} niwq o esicy entt pnb'bhsmu chivolg yerdl aeolv«7.7503802 % 7,750
'sgatziDepreciation>'owned asséts's €121 viail! 10 josgee nl ton bns Jnamyolyms ‘43,510‘f'~)0 246,343
swollo? 25 esy efitane b ~2rie onm nuwsISUMeT

2rCipn 2020, |nc|uded in the total expenditure of £1,133,107 (2019: £1,471,219), £71,603, (2019: £34,353)
0was to unrestricted funds, £54,509 was to restricted fixed asset funds (2019: £379,128) and

£1,006,995 2019 £1,057,738) was to restricted funds.
06-7% ( 307 ) « Anenumss . AR A

or-g [ l -0t bisn engtudinnos nioiansS
7. RAISING FUNDS

Costs of fundraising 7 :onagxa ‘gastanaT
18 bobra w32y et et ton M08 lzLpuA T€ bebns 160y ril 10t bisg 2s2nsqre ‘zesizul on Mow medT

2020°S te1pLA 01 g

Unrestricted Restricted Total . Total
ar.mfﬁﬁdgml 332Chunds

funds fu
2oWwP0seid viiet bolslaft adl 6l fio 393 ;s esalewnt ap & wviovel snpizeistt vitsces oo enOp
Staff costs - 3,857 3857 02547
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Children's'Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements™ continued
for.the Year Ended 317August 2020

8. CHARITABLE ACTIVITlES ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

] SMIQGKY THELTTREW Y R3]
€108 [HXUN 2020 2019
e ) o™ bajoirtacA ba.Unrestricted Restricted. Total Total
sonut zbet abnut abnut funds funds funds funds

3 3. 1 -2 £ £ £ £
SG !_Direct costs i Tt 8er_ 21,220 792,009)2€13/7813,2295 11c0 828,935
. Support costs 50,383 265,638 316,021 639,737

71,603 1,057,647 1,129,250 ° 1,468,672
FRETI Fle | = TR B

cwtinneqs ya-noV.

3ot 8108 .57 080, stepo 1atl 2.eimed geod finid 2020 . 2019
i 2 x K 1 Total Total
- . . garyy paiciuRe
Analysis of support costs ' _ grifufotbrui 13 223D
T#Z.£Support staff costs . - wee 136,340:0% 16'131,294
Depreciation 2,158 2,300
Technology costs A 28 213192 Usitind 25 424
Premises costs Isnniinegs,9301mabe 388,724
Other support costs . . 82,651134i510884,245
228 £Governance costs 84as .80t - h2,01% 7.750'¢2 1onil7 750
TETBEY r$0.3FE feveit 0£0.89 oreelr 2{e00 horyua batecoliA
Total support costs ’ ' 316,021 639,737
eistynl  loneerr oeeodis | 0ferd LELES |

9. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS igysils w0l baigta <i {swlibnacye)emooni joUt

er0sOne or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an

aemployment with the academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration
0as,sin respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and:other staff,members under
EaL, cthelr contracts of employment, and not in respect of their role as jTrustees-uThevalue.of;Trustees'
L remuneratlon ‘and other benefits was as follows:

- {EBE AR 210S) €09, 152 (A1S,ITH, 11 2708) fo..&r t 3 0 gruiibneato leted sm2°2°burom 0Sus (2019
brs {SR1,8VER R10S) zbmst te2es bad hetshtzz of eow 06032 sonu' £000mmy o es£000
ghnvt baiauest of esw (8?‘- g0, HQMS)EOS g30, !S}

Mr A Wirth . Remuneration . 60-6 55-60
' Pension contributions paid 10-15 5-10
L3IWUT DU R AY
Trustees' expenses nictsbnul 1o Sad
There were no trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31 August 2020 nor for the year ended 31
+psAugust 2020+
Hatiel ) ‘cloT e betydesinl
shnyy Other transactions an‘f .\h,,?,a )
30ther related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in the Related Party Disclosures
§ig Jnote. Lot 138.6 . 2iz00 TEI2
et ot BN, 2 v’:; o -t LT N
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

i
v

10. STAFF COSTS

. 2020 2019

; £ £
Wages and salaries -618,977 612,697
Social security costs T 50,513 .. 4599
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 181,648 -..© 171,945

s+ .- 851138 830,633
Supply teachercosts © ° . - 6,045

851,138 . - 836,678

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year expressed as full-
time equivalents:

2020 2019

"' - Teachers and teaching assistants 16~ 17
_Administration and support e 4 4
Management - . . . - S R 1

21 22

The averaée number of persons (including senior management-team) employed by the charitable
company during the year was as follows:

' ' 2.020‘ 2019

Teachers & teaching assistants 20° 24
Support and administrative 15 14
‘Management ° : ‘ 1 1
36 39

Cne employee received éfnployee benefits (excluding pension costs) exceeding £60,000 in the year
- (2019:0) -- - -

The key management personnel of the Academy trust comprise the trustees and senior leadership
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust for the
year was £163,274 (2019: £149,249).

11. TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. The Trust
purchases this insurance via The Department for Education Risk Protection Arrangement Scheme
and as such the cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.
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Children's Academy Trust Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

12. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

-INCOME AND .

ENDOWMENTS FROM

Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities

Funding for the academy's educational
operations

Other trading activities
Investment income

Total. .
EXPENDITURE ON
Raising funds
Charitable activities

Academy's educational operations

Total .

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit
schemes

Net movement in funds

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted  Total funds
fund funds Fixed Asset 2019
£ £ £ £
7,224 - 17,190 24,414
- 984,859 - 984,859
86,470 - - 86,470
192 - - 192
93,886 984,859 17,190 1,095,935
- 2,547 - 2,547
34,353 1,055,191 379,128 1 ,468,672
34,353 1,057,738 379,128 1,471,219
59,533 (72,879) (361,938) (375,284)
- (295,000) - (295,000)
59,5633 (367,879) (361,938) (670,284)
118,759 (458,521) 2,184,656 1,844,894
178,292 (826,400) 1,822,718 1,174,610
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS )

Leasehold Fumiture
land and and Computer
buildings equipment equipment Totals
£ £ £ £
£osT o .
At 1 September 2019 1,932,930 39,141- - 25214 1,997,285
Additions - 5,000 2,741 7,741
At 31 August 2020 1,932,930 44,141 27,955 2,005,026
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2018 152,371 31,327 22,176 = 205,874
Charge for year . 37,519 - 2,952 3,038 - 43,510
At 31 August 2020 189,890 - 34,279 é5,215 249,384
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2020 . ' ' 1,743,040 9,862 2,740 . .1,755,642
At 31 August 2019 . 1,780,559 7,814 3,038 1,791,411
STOCKS
2020 2019
£ £
Uniform 2,103 1,637
DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2020 2019
£ £
Trade debtors o ) 616 - 1,303
VAT ' : ' 5,032 6,538
Prepayments and accrued income o ’ 19,420 52,644
25,068 60,485
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16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2020 2019
£ £
Other creditors 1,284 -
" Accruals and deferred income ' 37,674 57,457
38,958 57,457
2020 2019
£ . £
Deferred income » ‘ o
Deferred income as at 1 September 2019 48,440" 47,437
Resources deferred during the year 29,154 48,440
Amounts released from previous years - . (48.440) - (47.437)
Deferred income as at 31 August 2020 29,154 48,440

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for trips booked

" "for the autumn term 2020 amounting to £nil (2019: £13,858).
Also included within deferred income is ff2,150 (2019: £2,167) rates relief, £6,385 (2019: £6,363)
devolved formula capital, £20,619 (2019: £20,139) universal infant free school meals and £nil (2019:
£5,913) SEN funding. This funding was received in advance in relation to periods post 31 August
- 2020 and will be spent after the accounting period end. .

Other creditors of £1,284 relates to Salix monies due to the ESFA (at 0% interest rate).

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2020 2019
' ' £ £
Other creditors 7,704 -

'Other creditors falling due after more than one year of £7,702 relates to Salix monies due to thé ESFA
. .(at 0% interest rate), of which £2,568 falls due in greater than 5 years.

18. LEASING AGREEMENTS

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

2020 2019

£ £
Within one year 372 372
Between one and five years 248 620
620 992

19. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.
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20. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS bauniinos - SGUJIT M TRIMDYON 18
. - . 2020
Unrestricted sy, Restricted ,vénRestricted 51500 Total
fund . funds . Fixed Asset . Funds
16 £an3i38 o S £ eongle8 £ £ £
taupuh 7P ienicd ' vadmatoge
eros Fixed assetsizo.) swibtagppd emoond R8N - 1,755,642 - 1,755,642
3 Current assets 3 oA 176,307 90,089 15,041 281,437
Current liabilities : (769) (31 804)~m,1 151(6,385) 5324 192 (38,958)
Long term liabilities - (7,704) s tsorsA Izane(7,704)
- Pension liability = (rg0,r28) C1S,2NR 011,86 (846,000) . - {£(846,000)
000,63 - (Y2251 ThaATH - . tngis 333 2410
oUB . (000,+) pao,»__175,538, (795,419) .:1,764,298,5. 1,144,417 -
. {C0O,TY8) (000,89€) {G90808) nnizned
[coe aComparatJve mfonnatlon in respect ‘of the, precedlng penod is; as ‘follows:
' S w2 2019
& »
Unrestricted Restncted Restr}’{gd( w:i:g) aiT tal
fund funds Fixed Asset Funds
. £ £ a pen 91'£1-=‘:z) elace
. Ssg.N0e . (@h3.E0) Yo2,008 v.i ‘ not 313Vnoa
£7¢.8(Fixed assets (oee.ShEy  oehat £y7.2e8 -eeq{;791:411 3313791 411
_£80,3 Current assets___ __(EEME) 000t 192,150}8. 87,836 enciiei37,6704Gs%) 1€317,656
_BIY.8sCurrent liabilities (881,018) £2i v (13,858).081,3 (37,236) (6,363) (57,457) .
Pension liability” - (877,000) - (877,000)
BrE TS i0U0,86E) (T3, :::‘.s.r} gR0RNY.F  CEs 98T, T zanut bufalunst lnieT
178,292 (826,400) 1,822,718 1,174,610
cas,87t €UE.AE) 888.te gev et abrs? votofvcewu IndaT
21. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Um;mn Ny L A8 ,,-Je IS B Raianhce at 12280 *f‘r?)ﬁgsm . alm 5h hce at
September . Gains/ 31 August
‘awd'io} o6 ,.ns 201918 94|fcome 0N Expenditire 107 CE{(Losses)74e © el 2020
£ £ £ £
arfl dRestricted ge‘,{eraﬁdj @ 2200 pruoniit isonon erd 101 baty od faum ebrut lsnep bcwnsaeﬁ ! ’
funds pnibrad ?o 2301002 oro moT £noilditiesy bns nemaswa pribnu istashl

General Annual Grant - '
w'a*"(GAG)QatMre ary rifiw el cx eecoquug lfiisD 1ge7,824932U (807, 824) ‘oarg bawil oehidecH K -

Other DFE grant 50,000 137,868  (139,171) _AmnT ot ig gg7
abn 3!'0 ‘!D?—r%rﬁgt:ré?ztﬁd gr"a‘pé's Sy 001, gafa ‘Goo.ﬂﬁv g’ 89 9. =iiab o (4,000) nq'~n"n bestaniz gy edT 600

- (877,000) " ann et n - sueenn (56, 000).4. «. ...87,000 __. .(846,000)

USROSl noqu beznenm o _an
\’0"'(: 289c0! IS-‘SU’JG 1o fluesy e f(826 400) e 949 692, 335(1 006 995) f“ﬂ(‘ i 87 000 :mnh (796 703)

:‘es‘:ﬂc‘“ fixed asset visealn fidlieb e «olinam of ouniinno liw seotennT o0 T nomsvrma
unds
nc firAssets transferred onv. ymiobras ari} e1612 Yo \sisiaed edf nifiv 3n3m5'-31{38 pn.bnu? arit wobol
.conversion 013,307,322 1€ 12 Lewyio’ ¥11.i(29,663) fartt 8AR) o inume 1,277,659
Other DfE Capital Grants 509,373 (3,911) (24,846) 480,616
Other Capital Donations 6,023 - - 6,023
1,822,718 (3,911) (54,509) - 1,764,298
Total restricted funds 996,318 945,781  (1,061,504) 87,000 967,595
- Total unrestricted funds 178,292 70,133 (71,603) ) T s 176,822
7y
Total funds : 1,174,610 1,015,914 (1,133,107) 87,000 1,144,417

bl
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21. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued SOMUR T VIEE STLU3A TEWM A0 2T IALA - 8¢
0%0% )
‘t'0T Comparatives for movements in fundssicnizesnt
shwd . tseaGbsxid |z unut
3 3 1 Balance at 1 L Balance at
‘ September ' Gains/- 31-August.
SPo.&88. T Sheget,r - 2018 income  Expenditure (Losses):2s5 baxi4 2019
TENT3S tho el €30.08 Vg 8% £ £ slcef£3 Inoud £
(8W. Rest"cted genera] funds 03,18) \'88\-} coittiuui .asnud
(%Y General Annual Grant  (*0V.Y) . . zottilidsil amet pno
lcoo (GAG), - (C00,0¢8) 49,879___ 804,212 (854,091) . vided noensg
Other DFE grant 3 - ...176,647 (126,647) - 50, 000
YibOther restricted'grants  ("T2.2€Y) . 600215 4,000 (4,000) - ' 600
Pension . (509,000) (368,000) (877,000) .
@0l € (458 521) W 984,859™ ' *(984,738)"°"~ (368,000) " ¥ (826,400)
erofy Restrlcted fi xed asset
810°0n c zar balfoitearl  ooiohlasinl]
ob 1 A badid ghout . ot
Assets transferred on 3 2 .
conversion™ . 1,340,567 (33,245) o 1,307,322
__ttp Other DfE Capital C Grants ' 835,573 16,190 = (342,390) aueze bex 509,373
333 Other Capltal Donatlons JE/ TR 8,516 tat 1,000 (3,493) .’ atanoe tnermi) 6,023
(‘ed3e) - (EBE, u) {6£S.7E) 2,184,656.61) 17,190 (379,128) £sitifia =il Inev1:822,718
(000,Y\8) . - . {900,Tv8) - , \liidsi naiengs _
Total restricted funds 1,726,135 1,002,049 (1 363,866) (368,000) 996,318
Qrgaved B\ SS8, 1 (onu,asa_) Ses BV _ i
Y DR R (I ig Wt N ] )
Total unrestricted funds 118,759 93,886 (34,353) 78 292
. QU Mg THIIVO Js -
” %nTgs(ail funds 1,844,894 1,095,935 . (1,398,219) (368,000) 1,174,610
dauguA 1e \ned wedmatg e '
.0%0a The specrﬁc purpose for which. the funds are to be applled are as follows
q
! 1. Restrlcted general fun::ls must be use:‘ct for the normal running costs of the Academy,ln line with the
Master Funding Agreement and restrictions from other sources of funding. chmd

1872 IsunnA Isvered
2. Restricted fixed asset funds are used solely, for capital purposes in line with the strateglc objectives

-+

vea giof the Trust. (:vr QEr) 8"8 \81 cneee tneg 320 w0
f ba ﬂ
(0;;0 8The restricted, pensuon funq. rs“_‘ln deﬁcrt to the valuecof £846 000 represenhngbxﬁs{on Greecr)ﬂands

-- < >=pension- deﬁcut‘as at-31: August 2020. £295 000- of thls deﬁcﬂ -was inherited upon conversion to
89 °Academy status in.2014%and'this’ deficit’has"increased:further. as.a result of actuarial losses since

conversion. The Trustees will continue to monitor the deficit closely. igivs bexid be! '7";;‘"’:
ebrniy
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not'subject to:a:limit on
£83,3the amount of GAG that it could carmry forward at 31 August 2020. nolarevnnd.
33,686 {90B,58) (Fre€)  oosQe 2nae) 16iigaD A renl
_ES05 ) - - _ 8338 ~ ereisnol Brasd 1ordi0
_BOCASYE - {B0EE) (E28)  8IN8es.: :
LAY taoY8 o ROD,B0.) NTER acee2 - abnut belshtzet ledoT
NNl A '1,,. - ' {€08,1Y) . £e08 RRg 8t elnul betaldecyow IataT
l +
JUBLePY | OO0NS_ (FOLsERe)  Mrestor owdavR: " ebnutistoT

L
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS "' .

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pensnon schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by South Yorkshlre Pensions
Authority. Both are multa-employer defined benefit schemes. .

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the penod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS
31 March 2016.

There were no outstandlng or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial
year.

Teachers' pension scheme . .

Introduction.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, deﬁned benefit scheme governed
by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers
in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment followmg
appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out. ‘

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a '‘pay as you go' basis - these
contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and
other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

Not less than every 4 years, the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a

formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and

Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify

the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the

value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the

TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions

(Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was pubhshed by the

Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and’ subsequent

consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer
administration charge

- total scheme liabilities (pensions curmrently in payment and the estimated cost of future
benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated
future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. Assumed red rate of return is'2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%.

" The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

"The empleyer‘s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £83,980 (2019 - £56,308).

. A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website

(www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer pension scheme.

The trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.’ ‘

Local government bension scheme

" The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered

funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £71,039 (2019 - £70,095),
of which employer's contributions totalled £57,191 (2019 - £55,637) and employees' contributions
totalled £13,848 (2019 £14,458). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 15% for employers
and 5.5 to 12.5% for employees.
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be

.met-by-the-Bepartment-for Education. The guarantee-came.into.force on 18 July 2013.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: .
Defined benefit pension

plans
2020 2019
£ £
Present value of funded obligations (1,726,000)  (1,699,000)
Fair value of plan assets 880,000 822,000
(846,000) (877,000)
Deficit (846,000) (877,000)
Liability (846,000) (877,000)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

T - ' ' Defined benefit pension

plans
2020 2019
. £ £

Current service cost 95,000 © 74,000

Net interest from net defined benefit asset/liability 16,000 13,000

Past service cost ’ - 41,000

111,000 128,000

Actual return on plan assets - (4,000) 56,000

»

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit pension

plans
2020 2019
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation - 1,699,000 1,219,000
Current service cost 95,000 74,000
Past service cost - 41,000
Contributions by scheme participants 14,000 - 14,000
Interest cost 31,000 34,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) (106,000) 330,000
Benefits paid (7,000) (13,000)
- 1,699,000

1,726,000
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_ 22, PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS » 2AO‘TA3L!8') Saliine al [ 9‘0!‘59;:5‘1 L
- continued bounitnoy -

viitehcChanges in the fair,value of scheme assets areas follows:s encitgrmszas villehora inomuo enT
96 89 908 Insmzitey no zholisiosqxe ol bomueas ulT .2sls:

eros gsos ) Defined benefit pension
: o _ yeplansynijosi
LE AN NN 2020 29kl42019
ees Q.88 ’ : £ cismalE
"Opening fair value of scheme assets - - 822,000 710,000
Contributions by employer - 3156,000: priw 556,000
£.25Contributions by scheme participants 14,000 =g!5114,000
£.8¢Expected return 15,000 :2lsrne21,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) : " (19,000) 35,000
Benefits paid - (7,000) (13,000)
$augt Administrative expenses - (1,000) (1,000)
eras 0808 o ' .
3 i ’ S £880,000 ﬁvi?ian 822,000
{000, th) QOOO ‘\‘u) : o8 1.0+ 331 Jawroneill
(90The amounts Tecognised in other recognlsed gains and losses are as follows: | 0~ 881 fiueoeiQl
000t 000 08 : Dee9 RN LY | ~ noilgmuies ‘{?t.ﬁhoh
(CDO,TE). (000,2¢) : ceaeoab way I - Defi ned benefit | pensmn
(CO0,E0) {000,08) ‘ 2020" 9351 RJ 2019
£

10t (QiActuanal gams/(k)sses)’\ 23ilidatl ameruc o} ridum worl 518 BVD"{a b3é’?"3¢87 000 o (295 OOO)
neidsutoul 6 lfqnmwb watnie Nose

87,000 (295,000)
) STHINTHVMOD JATHIAD &R
The majo[‘)g%tggories of scheme assets as amounts of total scheme assets are as follows:

Y

2108
. 2 3 Defined benefit pension
_\g_g e dnemelsle Isionenit edf ni 10t babwvo g fon 202po’“ IRV ) 2019
_ 2 . £ £
Equities : : 418,000 429,000
Government bonds o 129,000, 118,000
Corporate bonds GIRUE0. o210 Y 74,000~ TA-472,000%
perty,.. 77,000 , 60,000
onead mehin no h« cagmeg orfd bﬂa gnotuiego Tymebias ent o nu; ™ oahy:
rAtiw pC?hs:rand Ot!ff_.': "qﬂ'&’ 28508 2udezinamio wiose 9lsvig bas sildug 123 ggg Rt nu 1?? ggg
918 Tiuuscinibo fHauz gmvioval e toi-zenct A Jemsiv ns esr tautt a3 doih——=ls =

e io AFEd ant griviboa pnivulon HAA adl fo anetxiluper oft riliw e'm-'bm'g-éb 000 oub 822 000
ot ffw ans borup» meriw Iovoragu izt gnimadte brs 210C figA | ystte 1o na sz
bns £opsnned of grils oy *mubesuin iromewauly I bne 9.10:3&.9@:1 giorisnit gteud YmesosIs.
.engiinszet vhey batsle.
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)
‘eesteur mished neit sedlo gmeosor 1o babag el ni 2os'g 2icdd oholfogrney yhea bojsley oll
£ slon fii bseabaib VOBSYIB £3203UXs bn_zo%?.msnumm2°19

Discount rate ' 1.8% 1.8%
Future salary increases T : 3.55% 3.25%
Future pension increases ' ' 2.4% 21%
' Inflation assumption _ 23% 2.0%

K
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22. PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS BU’OlTMQUSU KAALME GLUA VoIGUIT BN
- continued asunfnns -

The current mortality assumptions includeisufficient/allowance iforifuture \improvements-in’mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

ngisy.uq htana 4 heniteQ ' 2020 2019
Retiring today . .
erGSMales 0SOS ' 224 23.1
3Females 3 . 25.2 25.9
000,01 £00,588 eicezs emarnay 1o sulav ia) oni1eq0
000, Retiring in'20 years - 1gyoigr vd wioifudirihed
000, Males 00D &1 sineciolheg emeroe y23.91uchinel25.3
06C,tFemales 00031 - - 127111 boiosgx:28.3
£co. 88 (ono.ery’ . . (20220 \ening BN5UIDA
(000.St) {000,5) - bing eined
© (000,1) {0C2 1) ’ ' ~ 2fAt 31-August if At 31"August
. : _ « 2020 2019
000 SSensitivity,analysis : . ©E £
Discount rate +0.1% (37,000) (41,000)
: Discount rate -0.1%vu!tot 24 618 282201 s 2nisp beaingess: citio nl bea-m 37,000 41;0,n5 41,000
—+—~—Mortality assumptlon -1-year increase > 39,000 31,000
nio;Mortality, assumption - 1 year decrease ) (39,000) (31,000)
CPlrate +0.1% . _ 50,000 43,000
oras CPI rate -O 1% . . (50,000) (43,000)
3

~each stated’ assumption fluctuation.
(00225 008

o = R

23. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS .
’ owollol 28,215 2io.28 emerniaz Inldl to einuoris eB 2laees odxeﬁ'::z o aahoq*%**otsm an’

—

2019
. Bai . £ £
no.2asq Manzd bauiftsQ
~rnl : -
o Contra&géitzut not provided for in the financial statements - 9,584
3 a AR \ . -
09, Q\h ' (}C() 8, - : : . aoitiupd
"‘LO.. 2bnod inzmmsvoed)
24 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES ebrod H161 OQ‘OJ
gég':Ow ing to the nature of the academy's operations and the composition of the board of, trustees being

OC‘J' drawn from”: Iocal public and private sector organisations, transactlons may’ “take | place with
— orgamsatlons in‘which the trust has an interest. All transactions involving such orgamsatrons are
GUL‘ (conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all

“transactions' made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.

{L3gave oeniiew 23 bees novw) a it Yeads eonsicd ol I3 2nodqginuzes IE1sutr ieparnd

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees"
2*0% remuneration‘and expenses already disclosed in note 9.

x8.f ~'8.1 : otsrt Snuadeid

et & Nee & ) T " ggenywni vw'lae syt -
T8 g XN eezpenon nolzneq swivd
<0.8 €8 - ncligmusezs noisfint. ¢
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